Public Document Pack
Copeland Borough Council
The Market Hall
Market Place
Whitehaven
CA28 7JG

EXECUTIVE
AGENDA
Venue:
Date:
Time:
Contact Officer:

This meeting will be a virtual meeting and therefore
will not take place in a physical location
Tuesday, 16th March, 2021
10.00 am
Clive Willoughby
Tel: 01946 598328

1.

Apologies for Absence

2.

Statements of Executive Decisions of the Meetings held on 18
February 2021 and 2 March 2021.

3.

Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:

4.

Written Questions from Members of the Public

5.

Reports from Overview and Scrutiny Committee

6.

Forward Plan

11 - 16

7.

UK Atomic Energy Authority (UKAEA) Spherical Tokamak for
Energy Production (STEP) Siting Process

17 - 24

8.

Cumbria Recovery Strategy

25 - 48

9.

Date and Time of Next Meeting:
The next meeting of the Executive will be held on Tuesday
20 April 2021 at10:00am. This will be a virtual meeting.

1 - 10

NOTES
Members of the public are welcome to attend this meeting as observers
except during the consideration of exempt or confidential items. If you have a
query on the meeting arrangements or if you require a copy of this document
in a different format (large print, braille, audio tape, electronic formats such
as CD or in a different language) please contact the relevant officer as shown
below.
Call-In
Most of the decisions taken by the Executive can be ‘called in’, in accordance
with Council’s Constitution, within 5 working days of the decision notice being
published. It is expected that the decision notice will be published on 19
March 2021. Subject to this publication, the deadline for calling in any
decision is 5.00pm on Friday 26 March 2021.

Contacts:

Direct Dial: 01946 598328
E-mail:
clive.willoughby@copeland.gov.uk
Website: www.copeland.gov.uk

Borough Council
Public Copeland
Document
Pack
The
Market Hall

Agenda Item 2

Market Place
Whitehaven
CA28 7JG

Notice of Decisions Taken Under Delegated Powers
by the Executive on Thursday, 18 February 2021
NOTES: The deadline for calling in any of these decisions is 5.00 pm on 2 March
2021.
A copy of the Executive agenda setting out all the reports has previously been
circulated to all Members of the Council.
Officers are asked to read this Decision Notice, as it is the responsibility of the
Officer named in the Action Column to ensure that the appropriate action is taken.
If you require further information on any issue please contact the Officer named in
the right hand column. For general information or to obtain a copy of any
documentation please contact Member Services.
Present: Mayor Mike Starkie, Councillors David Moore, Steven Morgan and
Andy Pratt.
Officers Present: Pat Graham, Chief Executive; Sarah Pemberton, Director of
Corporate Services and Commercial Strategy; Steven Brown, Director of Financial
Resources; Clinton Boyce, Solicitor; Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer;
Rose Blaney, Democratic Services Officer; Claire Dunn, Human Resources Manager
and Katie Longworth, Occupational Health and Safety Advisor.
Also Present: Councillors John Kane (Chair of OSC), Gwynneth Everett and
Michael McVeigh.
EXE
Apologies for Absence
20/213
Apologies for absence were received from Councillor Felicity Wilson.
EXE
Statements of Executive Decisions of the Meeting held on 26 January 2021
20/214
RESOLVED – That Statements of Decisions made on the 26th January 2021,
were agreed as a correct record and will be signed by the Mayor as soon as
practicable.

Page 1

EXE
Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:
20/215
No declarations of Interest were made by the Executive Members present.
EXE
Written Questions from Members of the Public
20/216
No questions had been received from Members of the public.
EXE
Reports from Overview and Scrutiny Committee
20/217
Councillor John Kane (the Chair of Overview and Scrutiny Committee)
advised that the Committee had not met since the last Executive meeting
and that their next meeting was scheduled for 19 February 2021.
Item
No.
EXE
20/218

Decision
FORWARD PLAN

CLT Lead
N\A

To consider the Mayor’s Executive Forward Plan.
Decision
RESOLVED - that the forward plan be agreed.
Reason for Decision
The Local Authority (Executive Arrangements (Access to
information (England) Regulations 2012 requires a forward
plan to be prepared in respect of key decisions. The work plan
is good practice.
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
N/A

Page 2

Item
No.
EXE
20/219

Decision
HEALTH AND SAFETY HALF-YEARLY REPORT

CLT Lead
N\A

To receive the Bi-Annual report on Health and Safety.
All Council activities have the potential to impact on Copeland
Residents therefore, it is important that all activities are
managed so they are carried out in a safe manner.
Decision
RESOLVED: that the Bi-Annual report on Health and Safety to
31 December 2020 and the associated actions arising from it
be noted.
Reason for Decision
As an employer, Copeland Borough Council (CBC) is required
to comply with the Health and Safety at Work Act 1974 and
regulations made under that Act. The Council must have
arrangements in place to protect employees and those
affected by any work undertaking provided by the Council.
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
No other options were considered.

Item
No.
EXE
20/220

Decision
CORPORATE PERFORMANCE UPDATE FOR QUARTER 3 OF
2020-21
The report provided the Executive with details of progress and
performance against the Corporate Strategy 2020-2024 for
Quarter Three of 2020-21.
Decision
RESOLVED – that progress made against the Corporate
Strategy key deliverables and performance measured through
Key Performance Indicators at the end of Quarter Three of
2020/21 be noted.

Page 3

CLT Lead
N\A

Reason for Decision
The Executive is responsible for managing the resources of the
Council and seeking to ensure best value through continuous
improvement is embedded throughout all of the Council’s
business
The Performance and Risk Management Officer was thanked
for a comprehensive report.
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
No other options were considered.

Item
No.
EXE
20/221

Decision
FINANCE REPORT FOR QUARTER 3 OF 2020-21
To receive a Budget Monitoring report which sets out the
Quarter Three forecast year-end results against the Council’s
Revenue and Capital Budgets for the 2020/21 financial year.
Decision
RESOLVED – that
1) the 2020/21 revenue forecast outturn net overspend of
£180k be noted,
2) the summary of the revenue outturn variances be
noted,
3) the revised capital outturn for 2020/21 be noted,
4) inclusion of Capitalisation Flexibility of £100k to be
funded from Capital Receipts be recommended to
Council, and
5) the revision of the capital programme for 2020/21 be
recommended to Council.
Reason for Decision
The proposals ensure the proper administration of the
Council’s financial affairs to enable the continued delivery of
services to Copeland residents.

Page 4

CLT Lead
N\A

Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
No other options were considered.

Item
No.
EXE
20/222

Decision
DRAFT BUDGET

CLT Lead
N\A

To consider the draft Revenue Budget 2021/22, Medium Term
Financial Strategy (2021-2023), 2021/2022 Treasury
Management Strategy and Capital Programme (2021-2026).
Decision
RESOLVED – That
a) the Mayor’s 2021/22 proposed Revenue Budget
requirement of £8,626k and 2021-2023 Medium Term
Financial Strategy (MTFS) as set out in section 2 of the
Agenda report which includes the fees and charges
schedule for 2021/22 as set out in Appendix A of the
report and use of reserves schedule as set out in
Appendix B of the report be recommended to Council
for approval,
b) the Mayor’s proposal to increase Council Tax by 1.95%
for 2021/22 and to delegate authority to the Council’s
Section 151 Officer to approve the necessary Council
Tax calculation in accordance with sections 31 – 36 of
the Local Government Finance Act 1982 be
recommended to Council for approval,
c) the Mayor’s proposed Capital Strategy for 2021/22 as
set out in Appendix C that includes the proposed Capital
Programme for 2021/22 – 2025/26 be recommended to
Council for approval,
d) the 2021/22 Treasury Management Strategy Statement,
Minimum Revenue Provision Policy Statement and
Annual Investment Strategy as set out in Appendix D be
recommended to Council for approval.
e) the updated Local Council Tax Support Scheme as set
out in paragraph 6.1 of the Agenda report be
recommend to Council for approval.

Page 5

f) the Pay Policy as set out in Section 7 and Appendix F of
the agenda report be recommend to Council for
approval.
g) the responses to the budget consultation as set out in
Appendix G of the agenda report be noted.
h) the Statement of the Responsible Financial Officer
(Section 151 Officer) be noted.
i) That the good work undertaken by the Director of
Financial Resources and his team in preparing the
budget be acknowledged.
Reason for Decision
This report forms part of the Budget & Policy Framework
within an Elected Mayor authority. The Executive is receiving
this information to consider and endorse the Elected Mayor’s
draft budget for 2021/22 and Medium Term Financial Strategy
projections up to 2022/23.
These proposals ensure the proper administration of the
Council’s Financial affairs to enable the continued delivery of
services to Copeland residents.
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
No other options were considered.

EXE
Date and Time of Next Meeting:
20/223
It was noted that the next meeting of the Executive would provisionally be
held on Friday 26th February 2021 at 2:00pm.
The next scheduled meeting of the Executive would be held on Tuesday
16th March 2021 at 10:00am.
These will be a virtual meetings.

The Meeting closed at 11.10 am

Mayor

Page 6

Borough Council
Public Copeland
Document
Pack
The
Market Hall
Market Place
Whitehaven
CA28 7JG

Notice of Decisions Taken Under Delegated Powers
by the Executive on Tuesday, 2 March 2021
A copy of the Executive agenda setting out all the reports has previously been
circulated to all Members of the Council.
Please note that item 3 is a recommendation to Council and therefore cannot be
called in.
Officers are asked to read this Decision Notice, as it is the responsibility of the
Officer named in the Action Column to ensure that the appropriate action is taken.
If you require further information on any issue please contact the Officer named in
the right hand column. For general information or to obtain a copy of any
documentation please contact Member Services.
Present: Mayor Mike Starkie, Councillors David Moore, Steven Morgan and Andy
Pratt.
Officers Present: Sarah Pemberton, Director of Corporate Services and Commercial
Strategy; Steven Brown, Director of Financial Resources; Clinton Boyce, Solicitor;
Clive Willoughby, Democratic Services Officer; Rose Blaney, Democratic Services
Officer.
Also Present: Councillor Felicity Wilson (Deputy Chair of Overview and Scrutiny
Committee).
EXE 20/224 Apologies for Absence
Apologies for absence were received from Pat Graham, Chief Executive.
EXE 20/225 Declarations of Interests in Agenda Items:
No declarations of Interest were made by the Executive Members
present.

Page 7

Item
No.
EXE
20/226

Decision
BUDGET
To re-consider the draft Revenue Budget 2021/22, Medium
Term Financial Strategy (2021-2023), 2021/2022 Treasury
Management Strategy and Capital Programme (2021-2026)
following Council’s decision to reject it on 25 February 2021.

CLT Lead
Steven Brown
Director of
Financial
Resources

Decision
RESOLVED – That the Mayor’s Budget proposals agreed by
Executive on 18 February 2021 and rejected by Council on 25
February 2021, be re-submitted to Council on 2 March 2021
without amendment.
Reason for Decision
This report forms part of the Budget & Policy Framework
within an Elected Mayor authority.
Following rejection of the proposed Budget by Council on 25
February, Executive are required to consider any
amendments.
In this instance, no alternative budget or amendments have
been submitted.
The Executive is receiving this information to consider and
endorse the Elected Mayor’s draft budget for 2021/22 and
Medium Term Financial Strategy projections up to 2022/23.
These proposals ensure the proper administration of the
Council’s Financial affairs to enable the continued delivery of
services to Copeland residents.
Alternative options considered and rejected (if any)
No other options were considered.

The Meeting closed at 10.23 am
Mayor

Page 8

Page 9

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10

Executive 16 March 2021
MAYOR’S FORWARD PLAN AND WORK PLAN
This Plan is published in accordance with the Local Authorities (Executive Arrangements) (Meetings and Access to Information) (England)
Regulations 2012. It provides details of key decisions which the Executive will be making during the above period.

Page 11

A key decision is a decision made by the Mayor either by himself, through his Executive, by individual Executive members or by officers
performing an Executive function and is one which either results in the Council incurring expenditure or making savings which are significant
(compared to the local authority’s budget for the service or function to which the decision relates) or is one which is significant in terms of its
effects on communities living or working in an area comprising of two or more wards or electoral divisions in the area. The Council’s
constitution states that ‘significant’ includes (a) any decision by the Executive in relation to proposed recommendations to Council to amend
the policy framework; (b) any single item of expenditure or savings in excess of £50,000; or (c) any decision which is likely to have a
permanent or long term (more than 5 years) effect on the Council or the Borough.
A key decision cannot be made until at least 28 clear days has elapsed between publication of this document and the day the decision is made.
An exception to this rule is where such publication of intention is impracticable. In those circumstances the period of 28 clear days may be
reduced to 5 clear days provided that the chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny Committee has been informed of the matter and shorter
notice has been publicised. If 5 clear days cannot be given then a decision may only be made if the Chairman of the Overview and Scrutiny
Committee has agreed to the making of the decision on the grounds that the decision is urgent and cannot unreasonably be deferred.

Copies of any document listed in the plan will be available from the officer shown in the table when the report is released, subject to them not
containing confidential or exempt information.

Agenda Item 6

Where the decision maker is shown to be the Executive, the Executive will comprise of Mayor Mike Starkie and Councillors David Moore as
Deputy Mayor, Steven Morgan and Andy Pratt.

Report

Who will Date on which the
make the decision will be
decision made

Portfolio
Holder

Lead Officer

Moss Bay Enterprise
Trust

Executive Executive
20 April 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Pat Graham –
Chief Executive

Yes

No

Corporate Debt
Recovery Policy

Council

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown –
Director of Financial
Resources

Yes

No

Executive
20 April 2021

Key
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt
information

Page 12

Council
27 April 2021
Constitution
Refresh/Update

Council

Council
27 April 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

Constitution –
Council
Financial Regulations

Council
27 April 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

Draft Copeland
Shopfront Design
Guide

Council
27 April 2021

Environment, Place
and Inclusive
Communities
Cllr Andy Pratt

Pat Graham –
Chief Executive

No

No

Council

Page 13

Report

Who will Date on which the
make the decision will be
decision made

Portfolio
Holder

Lead Officer

2020/21 Council
Performance Plan –
Quarter 4

Executive Executive
May 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

2020/21 Finance
Report – Quarter 4

Executive Executive
May 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown –
Director of Financial
Resources

Yes

No

Calendar of
Meetings 2021-22

Council
(AGM)

May 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

No

No

Outside Bodies
Annual Report

Council

OSC
May 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

No

No

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

No

No

Council
June 2021
Annual Scrutiny
Report

Council

OSC
May 2021
Council
June 2021

Key
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt
information

Page 14

Report

Who will Date on which the
make the decision will be
decision made

Portfolio
Holder

Lead Officer

Key
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt
information

Health and Safety
Monitoring Half
Yearly Report
1st Jan – 30th Jun ‘21

Executive Executive
July 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Pat Graham –
Chief Executive

No

No

2021/22 Council
Performance Plan –
Quarter 1

Executive Executive
August 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

2021/22 Finance
Report – Quarter 1

Executive Executive
August 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown –
Director of Financial
Resources

Yes

No

2021/22 Council
Performance Plan –
Quarter 2

Executive Executive
November 2021

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

2021/22 Finance
Report – Quarter 2

Executive Executive
November 2021

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown –
Director of Financial
Resources

Yes

No

Page 15

Report

Who will Date on which the
make the decision will be
decision made

Portfolio
Holder

Lead Officer

Key
Decision

Likely to contain
confidential
or exempt
information

Copeland
Community Lottery

Executive Executive
January 2022

Commercial Services
Cllr Steven Morgan

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

2021/22 Council
Performance Plan –
Quarter 3

Executive Executive
February 2022

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Sarah Pemberton –
Director of Corporate
Services and Commercial
Strategy (M.O.)

Yes

No

2021/22 Finance
Report – Quarter 3

Executive Executive
February 2022

Mayor
Mike Starkie

Steven Brown –
Director of Financial
Resources

Yes

No

Health and Safety
Monitoring Half
Yearly Report
1st Jul – 31st Dec ‘21

Executive Executive
February 2022

Nuclear & Corporate
Services
Cllr David Moore

Pat Graham –
Chief Executive

No

No

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 7
Executive 160321
LEAD MEMBER: Cllr David Moore
LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive
REPORT AUTHOR: Steve Smith, Nuclear Projects Manager

WHAT BENEFITS WILL THESE PROPOSALS BRING TO COPELAND RESIDENTS?
If the bidding process proves successful, the development of the STEP project will
provide significant investment in the locality and business and employment
opportunities for the local supply chain and local residents

WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE EXECUTIVE?
(eg Key Decision, Policy recommendation for Full Council, at request of Council,etc.)
This report has come to Executive after being considered by the Council’s Strategic
Nuclear and Energy Board at its meeting on 18th February when it agreed a
recommendation to seek the endorsement of Executive to the submission of the bid to
the siting process for UK Atomic Energy Authority (UKAEA) Spherical Tokamak for
Energy Production (STEP) project
RECOMMENDATIONS: That Executive supports the nomination of the Moorside site and
other suitable NDA-owned land around Sellafield into the national siting process.

UK Atomic Energy Authority (UKAEA) Spherical Tokamak for Energy
Production (STEP) Siting Process
1.

INTRODUCTION AND BACKGROUND

1.1.

The STEP programme is an UKAEA and UK Government initiative to accelerate
progress towards commercially-viable fusion power, through design and
construction of a prototype fusion reactor by 2040 and aims to build on the UK’s
world-leadership in compact fusion technology, to transition from a research-led
sector to industrial-design and delivery.

1.2.

This development aligns closely with the vision set out in the Cumbria Nuclear
Prospectus for a multi-technology clean energy park around Moorside, and with
the ambition set out in the Copeland Vision 2040 for Copeland to be a “globally

Page 17

recognised place of innovation” and to become a “major clean energy hub for
the UK”.
1.3.

The siting process is seeking to identify a site of at least 100 hectares to host the
STEP facility and associated modern, low-carbon, high-skill and high-value supply
chain activity. This £multi-billion programme could have a significant immediate
and long-term positive economic and regenerative effect to West Cumbria.

1.4.

A report outlining the bidding process and additional background to the project
was considered by Members of the Council’s Strategic and Nuclear Energy Board
(SNEB) at its meeting on 18th Feb. A recommendation from that meeting was
that the submission of a bid focussed on the nomination of the Moorside site be
considered for endorsement by Executive. A copy of the report to SNEB is
attached as appendix A.

2.

DISCUSSION

2.1

Members are asked to endorse the nomination of the Moorside site into the
national siting process for the STEP project

3.

STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS

3.1

The Monitoring Officer’s/Legal comments are: The project’s bidding process
together with the background detail has already been considered by SNEB. This
project work is a furtherance and alignment of the Council’s published Cumbria
Nuclear Prospectus and also the Copeland Economic Vision 2040. This report is
presented to Executive with the recommendation of support in consideration of
the facilities siting process. No legal issues arise as a result of the
recommendation made; but any legal issues which subsequently surface will be
dealt with as a continuing part of the process.

3.2

The Section 151 Officer’s comments are:
There are no direct financial implications for the Council arising from this
recommendation’

4.

RESOURCE REQUIREMENTS

The submission is being supported by a team assembled through the Cumbria LEP, with
the deadline for completed submissions being 31st March.

Page 18

5. HOW WILL THE PROPOSALS BE PROJECT MANAGED AND HOW ARE THE RISKS
GOING TO BE MANAGED?
5.1
The Council’s engagement in the development of the submission is being led by
the Council’s Nuclear Sector Development Manager

6.
6.1

WHAT MEASURABLE OUTCOMES OR OUTPUTS WILL ARISE FROM THIS REPORT?
The submission will be completed and submitted by 31st March

List of Appendices
Appendix A - UK Atomic Energy Authority (UKAEA) Spherical Tokamak for Energy
Production (STEP) Siting Process – report to SNEB 18th Feb 2021
List of Background Documents:

Page 19

Appendix A
STRATEGIC NUCLEAR AND ENERGY BOARD 210218
UK Atomic Energy Authority (UKAEA) Spherical Tokamak for Energy Production
(STEP) Siting Process
LEAD OFFICER: Pat Graham, Chief Executive Officer
REPORT AUTHOR: Rob Ward, Nuclear Sector Development Manager
Summary:
This paper provides an update to members on the siting process launched by the UK Atomic
Energy Authority in late 2020 to identify a site for the development of a future Fusion facility,
known as “STEP”.

Recommendation:
That members of the Board:
1. Note the information in this paper, and;
2. Recommend that the Council’s Executive Committee supports the nomination of the
Moorside site and other suitable NDA-owned land around Sellafield into the national siting
process.

2. Background
2.1.

The STEP programme is an UKAEA and UK Government initiative to accelerate progress
towards commercially-viable fusion power, through design and construction of a
prototype fusion reactor by 2040.

2.2.

The STEP programme aims to build on the UK’s world-leadership in compact fusion
technology, and aims to transition from a research-led sector to industrial-design and
delivery.

2.3.

To date, the UK’s fusion development activity has been focussed at the Culham Centre
for Fusion Energy in Oxfordshire, home to the Joint European Torus (JET) and Mega
Ampere Spherical Tokamak (MAST) fusion test reactors.

2.4.

However, the UKAEA is now searching for a site elsewhere in the UK to construct the
STEP facility and to host the associated industrial and supply chain facilities.

3. The Siting Process
3.1.

UKAEA has set out the criteria by which sites will be assessed:

Page 20

1.
2.
3.
4.
5.

Showstoppers: pass/fail
Commercial terms: score/100
Socio-economic vision: score/100
On-site characteristics: score/100
Off-site characteristics: score/100

3.2.

The elements of these 5 “pools” are shown in the image below:

3.3.

Nominations have been invited from a range of organisations that meet some basic
criteria:





The entity is capable (in personnel and funding) to work with UKAEA as we assess
the proposal
The entity has some form of jurisdiction (council, LEP, business group, devolved
Government) for the area of the site
That not more than one entity propose the same site
That the proposing entity has the agreement of the landowner to propose the site

3.4.

The deadline for nominations into the national siting process is 31st March 2021.

3.5.

Further information on the STEP facility and siting process is available on the UKAEA
website, accessible via the following link:
https://step.ukaea.uk/

3.6.

To date, representatives from UKAEA have made presentations to Cumbrian
stakeholders via two Cumbria LEP-hosted online events, and to the Nuclear Legacy
Advisory Forum.

3.7.

Engagement has also taken place between the Department for BEIS, UKAEA and NDA in
relation to land ownership and availability issues.

Page 21

4. Strategic Opportunity
4.1.

This development aligns closely with the vision set out in the Cumbria Nuclear
Prospectus for a multi-technology clean energy park around Moorside, and with the
ambition set out in the Copeland Vision 2040 for Copeland to be a “globally recognised
place of innovation” and to become a “major clean energy hub for the UK”.

4.2.

The scale of development is likely to be comparable to an operational power station,
with associated infrastructure and research and development facilities. The programme
will require investment in skills development from apprenticeships to higher level skills
and UKAEA has committed to working with local education and training providers early
in the programme.

4.3.

It is likely that the programme will be consented as a Nationally Significant
Infrastructure Project (NSIP) under a Development Consent Order (DCO). STEP will be a
project at the international forefront of the clean energy revolution, bringing visibility to
the community on a global stage.

4.4.

The siting process is seeking to identify a site of at least 100 hectares to host the STEP
facility and associated modern, low-carbon, high-skill and high-value supply chain
activity. This £multi-billion programme could have a significant immediate and longterm positive economic and regenerative effect to West Cumbria.

4.5.

As the UK’s Centre of Nuclear Excellence, host to a wealth of nuclear capability across
industry, supply chain and R&D, Copeland is well-placed to support this development.
This is further reinforced by the potential for transferability with the development of
advanced fission which already takes place in West Cumbria, led by National Nuclear
Laboratory as the UK authority on advanced fuels and reactor technology.

5. The Cumbrian Nomination
5.1.

Over the Christmas period, the Cumbria Local Enterprise Partnership (LEP) launched a
mini competition to identify a single site to be nominated on behalf of Cumbrian
stakeholders into the national siting process.

5.2.

On behalf of the Council, the Portfolio Holder for Nuclear and Corporate Services
nominated the Moorside site and other suitable NDA-owned land around the Sellafield
site into this Cumbria mini-competition.

5.3.

The Cumbria LEP will undertake an assessment of any Cumbrian sites nominated,
making a decision as to which will be taken forward into the national siting process by
the 5th February 2021.

Page 22

5.4.

Although the Cumbria LEP is planning to select one Cumbrian site only to be nominated,
there is no limitation on how many nominations from a region may be made into the
national siting process.

Page 23

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 8
Executive 160321
CUMBRIA RECOVERY STRATEGY

LEAD MEMBER:
LEAD OFFICER:
REPORT AUTHOR:

Mayor Mike Starkie
Pat Graham, Chief Executive
Peta Leigh, Policy Officer

WHAT BENEFITS WILL THESE PROPOSALS BRING TO COPELAND
RESIDENTS?
A county-wide partnership approach to recovery will ensure that Copeland
residents benefit equally with all other districts
WHY HAS THIS REPORT COME TO THE EXECUTIVE?
The adoption of the strategy requires the approval of the Council’s
Executive
RECOMMENDATIONS:
Executive is asked to adopt the Cumbria Recovery Strategy

1.

INTRODUCTION

1.1

Councils in Cumbria are working in partnership on plans to progress
the recovery from the impact of the Covid 19 pandemic. This
strategy documents priorities for recovery and how they will be
measured.
These plans will be monitored for success by Cumbria’s Strategic
Recovery Coordination Group.

Page 25

1.2

There are five themes running through the strategy:
 Prosperity - Cumbria’s economy will develop sustainably, with
growth particularly focussed on tackling poverty and providing
quality employment for all.
 People - Everyone in Cumbria will have the opportunity to develop
and use their skills and talents in a way that recognises the value they
bring to society and to enjoy a safe, healthy, varied and fulfilling life
whilst achieving their potential
 Place - Cumbria’s physical infrastructure will promote health and
wellbeing with access to good quality suitable housing to meet
needs, high quality urban environment with good access to the
services needed for a healthy and safe life. All contributing to making
Cumbria an attractive place to live, work and visit and encouraging
sustainable growth.
 Participation - Cumbrian communities will be strong, resilient and
inclusive, with well-developed social networks and widespread
engagement with community life.
 Planet - Cumbria’s natural environment will be protected and
enhanced. Sustainability will be at the heart of future development
and Cumbria will reduce its ecological footprint even as it develops
economically

2.

STATUTORY OFFICER COMMENTS

2.1 The Monitoring Officer’s/Legal comments are: the recovery plan and
themes held within it align and help to achieve ambitions of Copleland’s
Corporate Plan which was reworked and approved by Executive last year to
reflect the impact of Covid and recovery of the Borough. No legal issues
arise from the recommendation made to Executive; any legal issues which
subsequently arise during phases of implementation will be dealt with as
they arise.

Page 26

2.2 The Section 151 Officer’s comments are: There are no direct financial
implications for the Council arising from the adoption of the Cumbria
Recovery Strategy.

3. WHAT MEASURABLE OUTCOMES OR OUTPUTS WILL ARISE FROM
THIS REPORT?
3.1 A cohesive approach to recovery from the impact of the Covid 19
pandemic for Cumbrian communities
List of Appendices
Cumbria recovery Strategy

Page 27

This page is intentionally left blank

Page 29

Cumbria
Recovery
Strategy

❝

Have your say
consultation
document

❝
Page 30

BUILDING A BETTER,
STRONGER AND
MORE RESILIENT
CUMBRIA FOR OUR
RESIDENTS, OUR
COMMUNITIES,
VISITORS AND
BUSINESSES

Recovery Strategy

1

Message to Cumbria’s residents,
communities and businesses
Cumbria is a unique place with strong
communities who have come together to
respond to the Covid-19 pandemic. Recovery
will be demanding but our aim is to build a
better place where people are healthy and
safe and people want to visit, communities are
connected and thriving and our economy is
growing, sustainable and benefits everyone.

Page 31

During Covid-19 an environment was created
that provided a focus and sense of pace
around keeping people safe, people were
actively supporting each another within their
communities. Elected members, services
and all sectors of society embraced digital
solutions and we witnessed people adapt
and flex to work and live in new ways, show
kindness and support for their neighbours
and use public services responsibly.
For many of us the pandemic was, and continues
to be, an extremely sad time. Families have lost
loved ones and we are still unable to spend
time with those closest to us and we have all
had to adapt and learn a new way of living.

It has also been clear to see who has played
a vital role in supporting us and protecting us
when we are vulnerable. We are grateful to the
thousands of key workers who have responded in
an exceptional way to support our communities.
Everyone, without exception, has pulled together
to protect and support the most vulnerable
people in our communities. During Covid-19 the
importance of Cumbria’s third sector, voluntary
organisations and volunteers also became
clear with thousands of volunteers mobilized
to support Cumbria and its communities.
Businesses have faced the most challenging
economic environment in living memory and
yet have demonstrated significant resilience
in continuing to trade, protect jobs, the
health of their workforce and provide vital
services to the nation. Going forward we will
work with our businesses to support their
recovery and to make sure that Cumbria
benefits from future growth opportunities.

During this time we also observed
how vital strong communities are, how
important our health and wellbeing is
and how essential our businesses are to
the economic wellbeing of our county.

Recovery Strategy

2

We believe
that through
effective
recovery plans
we can build a
better future
for us all.
Page 32

As we reflect, now is also the
time to look to the future.
We need to think about how
we can build a better life,
embrace a different way of
working and make plans to
help support an inclusive,
thriving and strong Cumbria.
Our approach to recovery
builds on work already underway and retains many of our
aspirations. It is designed to be
embedded into the very heart
of our existing governance
structures, so that it becomes
part of our everyday business.

Recovery Strategy

3

R E COV E R Y P R I O R I T I E S
Cumbria will reflect, rethink and reimagine a future where:

Page 33

We are committed to economic
recovery and ensuring that
all businesses have the
necessary support to grow
their businesses in a way that
is sustainable and resilient

Older people are valued
as part of the community
and supported to live
as independently
as possible

The climate is
protected and we
actively support
sustainable,
greener travel

Young people can fulfil
their true potential and in
particular a future where
we attract and retain young
people to address the current
future workforce skills gap

Cumbria is a great place
to work, a place where
work is rewarding and
all jobs enjoy and offer a
good work life balance

Public services work
together for the benefit
of their communities,
placing people and
those in need at the very
heart of all our services

We have happier, healthier
communities with a
clear focus on quality
health and wellbeing

Everyone is encouraged
to live, work and invest in
Cumbria and ‘Think Local’ –
supporting the reinvention
of our town centres

You can do sustainable
business anywhere

Communities are strong,
inclusive and make time
for each other. They are
actively engaged in recovery
and supported to thrive

The valuable role of
voluntary organisations and
volunteers is embraced and
supported as an essential
component to our future

We have a range of high
quality, energy efficient,
affordable homes
that meet the need of
a changing population
and workforce.

Recovery Strategy

4

T

LE

P EO P

Our Recovery
Strategy,
principles
and themes

PR OS

PE

RI

Y

PL AC

PA
T

Our guiding principles for recovery
will be ‘Selflessness, Integrity,
Objectivity, Accountability,
Openness, Honesty, Leadership’.

Recovery Strategy

1
5

PL A N

Recovery
Themes

ET

PART

I CI

Page 34

These plans will be monitored for
success by Cumbria’s Strategic
Recovery Coordination Group.

E

The approach to recovery for
Cumbria will be built around existing
partnerships. Shaped by all partners
at a county and local level. Recovery
plans will be clearly articulated
in their programmes and plans.

IO

N

Page 35
Recovery Strategy

6

PROSPERIT Y

Page 36

❝

A SUSTAINABLE,
GROWING
ECONOMY
FOR CUMBRIA

Recovery Strategy - Prosperity

7

PROSPERIT Y
Cumbria’s economy will develop sustainably, with
growth particularly focussed on tackling poverty
and providing quality employment for all.

MEASURES OF
PROGRESS

Priorities for Recovery
› Working in partnership

Page 37

to ensure Cumbria’s
for businesses can
continue to operate in a
Covid-19 secure way

› Build on the Cumbria

wide plan to rethink our
economic future making
sure that Cumbria’s needs
and opportunities are
effectively addressed

› Develop the areas where
Cumbria has genuine
competitive advantage
and there is policy and
investment traction

› Work with government

› Ensure at the heart

of recovery activity is
Inclusive Growth, Making
sure that Inclusive Growth,
net zero/decarbonisation
and increased productivity
are at the heart of recovery

› Work with key business

sectors to implement
sectoral recovery plans

› Develop and implement
a Poverty Framework
to ensure priorities
and work programmes
reflect the impact of
poverty and contribute
to our ambitions.

› Economic Impact
Assessment
developed and
implemented

› Accurate

understanding of
Economic Impact
available and used
to inform activity

› Impact on

Cumbria’s economy
is less detrimental
than forecasted
in July 2020

› Effective package

of mitigation
measures in place
to offset the worst
economic impacts
including increased
financial and policy
support from
central government

› Reduced number
of children living
in poverty.

to secure investment and
policy support for Cumbria

Recovery Strategy - Prosperity

8

PEOPLE

Page 38

❝

SAFE, HEALTHY
AND FULFILLING
LIVES FOR ALL

Recovery Strategy -People

9

PEOPLE
Everyone in Cumbria will have the opportunity
to develop and use their skills and talents in
a way that recognises the value they bring to
society and to enjoy a safe, healthy, varied and
fulfilling life whilst achieving their potential.

MEASURES OF
PROGRESS

Priorities for Recovery
› Reduced numbers

Page 39

› Work to minimise the

impact of Covid-19 on
health inequalities and the
health and wellbeing of
people and communities
– including due to poor
Mental Health, Misuse of
Substances and experience
of Domestic Abuse
throughout the pandemic

› Implementation of the

Early Help Strategy to
support schools and the
wider Safeguarding system
to minimise demand across
the system and improve
educational outcomes for
children and young people

› Learn from this experience

and work towards building
a better health, care and
wellbeing care system that
serves all the people and
communities of Cumbria

› The instigation of measures
to mitigate identified
risks to population
mental wellbeing and
mental health arising
from Covid-19

› Increase proportion

of the population with
basic skills, including
digital skills, enabling
access to better work and
improved prospects.

of people reporting
as feeling isolated

› Reduced numbers
of children and
young people
Not in Education,
Employment
or Training

› Improved

educational
outcomes for
all children

› Reduced number of
children recieving
statutory services

› Self-reported

measure of
people’s wellbeing
(Healthwatch)

› Reduction in the
rate of people
being admitted
to hospital
for substance
misuse harms

› Increase in the

number/proportion
of people reporting
feeling safe and
supported

› Reduction of

repeat Domestic
Abuse incidents.

Recovery Strategy - People

10

P L AC E

Page 40

❝

CUMBRIA, AN
ATTRACTIVE
PLACE TO
WORK AND LIVE

Recovery Strategy - Place

11

P L AC E
Cumbria’s physical infrastructure will promote
health and wellbeing with access to good quality
suitable housing to meet needs, high quality urban
environment with good access to the services
needed for a healthy and safe life. All contributing
to making Cumbria an attractive place to live, work
and visit and encouraging sustainable growth.

› Reduction in

Priorities for Recovery

Page 41

› Seek funding support for

infrastructure that can
unlock economic growth,
employment and housing

› Seek opportunities to

use Government place
programmes to progress
Recovery Prioirities

› Support housing market

› Deliver the Cumbria Digital

› Promote health and

› We will implement

recovery through the key
themes of the Cumbria
Housing Statement
wellbeing with access to
good quality housing to
meet identified need

› Work collaboratively

to identify projects and
seek external funding
opportunities that can
support local recovery

MEASURES OF
PROGRESS

infrastructure Strategy
primarily focusing on the
impacts of Covid-19

homelessness and
the number of
rough sleepers

› More homes are

delivered across
the County

› New ways of

working – digital
connectivity

› Effective delivery

of agreed
programmes within
Town Deals and
Borderlands

› Increased property
transactions and
private lettings
back to pre
COVID-19 levels.

plans to safely manage
Cumbria as the UNESCO
tourist destination that
is first-class for visitors
and our communities.

Recovery Strategy - Place

12

PA R T I C I PAT I O N

Page 42

❝

STRONG,
INCLUSIVE
AND THRIVING
COMMUNITIES

Recovery Strategy - Participation

13

PA R T I C I PAT I O N
Cumbrian communities will be strong, resilient and
inclusive, with well-developed social networks and
widespread engagement with community life.

MEASURES OF
PROGRESS

Priorities for Recovery
› We will continue to

Page 43

encourage neighbourliness
and informal community
action. We will build
further on the asset
based approach to ensure
communities continue
to thrive and are even
more resilient for future
emergency events

› Continue to learn and

adapt from our experience
(and that of others),
building on positive
changes and letting go of
unhelpful ways of working,
and support people as they
learn to work in new ways

› Building on the community
response to Covid-19
- supporting people
and communities in
Cumbria to thrive

› Adopt a collaborative

co-production approach,
involving a wide range
of people, communities
and organisations.

› Stronger

communities:
reduction in the
gap - indices of
deprivation

› Social inclusion:

self-isolation,
proportion of adult
social care users
who have as much
social contact as
they would like

› Service user

feedback: reporting
improved access
to services

› Better ways of

working between
public sector
and community/
voluntary groups
with evidence
of greater coproduction.

Recovery Strategy - Participation

14

PL ANET

Page 44

❝

PROTECTED
AND ENHANCED
ENVIRONMENT
IN CUMBRIA

Recovery Strategy - Planet

15

PL ANET
Cumbria’s natural environment will be protected
and enhanced. Sustainability will be at the heart
of future development and Cumbria will reduce its
ecological footprint even as it develops economically.
Priorities for Recovery
› To achieve a net zero

Page 45

carbon position for the
county by 2037 and to
mitigate the likely impact
of existing climate change
in a way that delivers
better public health,
reduced inequalities, a
healthier environment and
thriving local economies.

› Increase active travel

provision - making it easy
for people to walk, cycle
and work remotely

› Support the wellbeing

of people and the
environment through
access to nature, ability
to exercise and access
to essential services

› Develop low carbon

infrastructure that
supports local economic
recovery from coronavirus

MEASURES OF
PROGRESS
› Reduced fuel
consumption
& mileage

› Reduced carbon
emissions

› Preparation of a
nature recovery
strategy

› New ways of

working and
learning – digital
connectivity

› Funding and plans

in place for more
joined up walking
and cycling
networks (LCWIPs).

› Embrace the natural

environment to support
Cumbrian farmers and
farming and harnessing
new technologies.

Recovery Strategy - Participation

16

Page 46

H AV E YO U R S AY

Recovery will be a long-term
process that requires a flexible and
sustainable approach, as there are
still many unknowns. Many of the
impacts of Covid-19 are still not yet
clear, and the national approach
to recovery is also still emerging.
But we are committed to starting to make
effective recovery plans for our future now.
That is why we have produced this
document outlining our suggested
recovery plans and priority areas.
We really do want to hear from you
about these important recovery plans.
Please take time to fill in this survey at
cumbriarecovery.org and give us your
thoughts, ideas and suggestions.
We have used our knowledge and
understanding of the impacts of Covid-19 and
we have engaged with partners across the
systems to develop a draft Recovery Strategy.
We will use your feedback to refine our
thinking and reflect this in the final Cumbria
Recovery Strategy - to be published in 2021.
We firmly believe ‘Together we can’ - build
a better future for us all and your voice
in shaping these plans are essential.
Signed on behalf of all partners
from Cumbria’s Strategic Recovery
Coordination Group

❝
Page 47

RECOVERY WILL BE
DEMANDING BUT OUR AIM
IS TO BUILD A BETTER PLACE
WHERE PEOPLE ARE HEALTHY
AND SAFE, COMMUNITIES ARE
CONNECTED AND THRIVING
AND OUR ECONOMY IS
GROWING, SUSTAINABLE
AND BENEFITS EVERYONE.

Page 48

Contact
COVID.recovery@cumbria.gov.uk

If you require this document in
another format (e.g. CD, audio
cassette, Braille or large type)
or in another language, please
telephone 01228 606060

